Database Maintenance ZENworks. Mobile Management 3.1.x

March 2015





Legal Notices

Novell, Inc., makes no representations or warranties with respect to the contents or use of this documentation, and specifically disclaims any express or implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. Further, Novell, Inc., reserves the right to revise this publication and to make changes to its content, at any time, without obligation to notify any person or entity of such revisions or changes.

Further, Novell, Inc., makes no representations or warranties with respect to any software, and specifically disclaims any express or implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. Further, Novell, Inc., reserves the right to make changes to any and all parts of Novell software, at any time, without any obligation to notify any person or entity of such changes.

Any products or technical information provided under this Agreement may be subject to U.S. export controls and the trade laws of other countries. You agree to comply with all export control regulations and to obtain any required licenses or classification to export, re-export or import deliverables. You agree not to export or re-export to entities on the current U.S. export exclusion lists or to any embargoed or terrorist countries as specified in the U.S. export laws. You agree to not use deliverables for prohibited nuclear, missile, or chemical biological weaponry end uses. See the Novell International Trade Services Web page (http://www.novell.com/info/exports/) for more information on exporting Novell software. Novell assumes no responsibility for your failure to obtain any necessary export approvals.

Copyright © 2012-15 Novell, Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, photocopied, stored on a retrieval system, or transmitted without the express written consent of the publisher.

Novell, Inc. 1800 South Novell Place Provo, UT 84606 U.S.A. www.novell.com

Online Documentation: To access the latest online documentation for this and other Novell products, see the Novell Documentation Web page (http://www.novell.com/documentation).

Novell Trademarks

For Novell trademarks, see the Novell Trademark and Service Mark list (http://www.novell.com/company/legal/trademarks/ tmlist.html).

Third-Party Materials

All third-party trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Table of Contents

Database Maintenance	4
Transaction Log Configuration	4
Database Cleanup	4
System Backup	4
The Database Task Scheduler	5
The ZENworks Mobile Management Database Cleanup Tasks	5
Adding a Database Task	8
Managing the Database Tasks	9
Task Parameters: Best Practices/Recommendations	10
Moving the ZENworks Mobile Management Database	14
Back Up Before you Begin	14
Setting up the New Database Server	14
Moving the Database	15
Completing and Verifying the Move	19
Additional Steps	19

Database Maintenance

Database cleanup and backup are two key elements in maintaining and insuring efficient system performance. The best practices outlined below should be incorporated into your organization's system maintenance routine.

Transaction Log Configuration

With *ZENworks Mobile Management* versions 2.6.0 or greater, the database is configured to prevent the transaction log from growing too large. Simple recovery mode is enabled and the maximum size for the log is set to 16 GB. When the log approaches the maximum size, alerts are issued. High volume systems may want to monitor the transaction log to determine whether the maximum size should be set to a value higher.

An upgrade from versions 2.5.4 or less will shrink the database transaction log, set the maximum size for the log to 16 GB or to the size of the shrunken log plus 1 GB (whichever is greater), and enable simple recovery mode.

Database Cleanup

Verify that the database cleanup tasks have been enabled. When the *ZENworks Mobile Management* server software is installed, tasks are enabled, by default, with parameters for a system accommodating 1000 devices. Administrators of larger systems should adjust the task parameters according to the recommendations in the <u>Database Task Scheduler</u> section of this guide. To verify that the jobs are running, access the *Database Task Scheduler* from the dashboard and view the task grid. The grid displays which cleanup jobs are enabled, the last time each job was executed, and when each job will run again.

If a database task fails to run, you can check the *DatabaseTaskSchedulerLogs* database table for errors. See the <u>System Administration Guide</u>: Server Logging.

System Backup

Periodically backing up the database is an essential practice for system maintenance. A daily backup of the database, preferably streamed off site, is recommended at minimum.

In addition, back up the MDM.ini file on the Web/Http server. This file is found under the *ZENworks* directory. Default directory: C:\Program Files\Novell\ZENworks\mobile

Regular backups ensure that data can be recovered if the database becomes compromised. With both a database backup and a backup of the MDM.ini file, a system can be fully restored if necessary.

The Database Task Scheduler

When devices connect to the *ZENworks Mobile Management* Server, information regarding those connections is logged in the database and stored for potential troubleshooting purposes.

The amount of information that is logged depends on several factors, such as the number of users on the *ZENworks Mobile Management* Server, the type of traffic being sent back and forth, the amount of logging taking place, and the frequency of device connection intervals. Over time, this information can build up in the database and become difficult to manage.

Administrators can use the *Database Task Scheduler* to set cleanup jobs to run at regular intervals in order to clear excess data and maintain optimal database performance.

The ZENworks Mobile Management Database Cleanup Tasks

Database jobs are enabled by default when the *ZENworks Mobile Management* server software is installed. The jobs are configured with recommended parameters for a system accommodating up to 1000 devices. Administrators of larger systems should adjust the task parameters according to the recommendations listed in the <u>best practices</u> guidelines in this document.

Tasks can be edited, added, or removed through the *Database Task Scheduler*. You can also use the task scheduler to manually initiate a task so that it bypasses the frequency interval and runs immediately.

Additional tasks can be created to run customized SQL scripts at regular intervals.

Most of the default database tasks are cleanup jobs. There is also a default job that defragments the database indexes.

Database Task Descriptions

AirProxyLogs	Cleans up device sync logs.
Alerts	Cleans up messages from the <i>Alerts</i> grid.
APNTracking	Cleans up iOS APN request logs.
DatabaseTaskSchedulerLogs*	Cleans up the database task scheduler traffic; all tasks that executed successfully or that gave an error.
DataUsageLogs	Cleans up device traffic information.
Defragment Indexes*	Reorganizes data stored in SQL database indexes in order to maintain optimal database query performance.

DeviceLocations	Cleans up device location data.
DeviceLogs	Cleans up logs retrieved from the device when device logging is enabled.
DeviceStatistics	Cleans up general device information.
ErrorChainLogs	Cleans up detailed error messages when an APN command is not executed successfully.
iOSDeviceInformation	Cleans up specific device information related to an iOS device.
iOSDeviceNetworkInformation	Cleans up an iOS device's hardware address, phone number, SIM card, and cellular information.
iOSInstalledApplications	Cleans up information about apps installed on an iOS device.
iOSInstalledCertificates	Cleans up information about all the certificates installed on an iOS device.
iOSInstalledConfigurationProfiles	Cleans up information about various configuration profiles installed on the iOS devices. When information is deleted from this table, it is also deleted from two other tables that it references: iOSProfileSignerCertificates and iOSInstalledConfigurationProfilePayloads.
iOSMDMSyncLogs	Cleans up iOS APN traffic logs.
iOSSecurityInfo	Cleans up iOS device security-related information, such as encryption capabilities and whether the device is passcode protected.
LicensingLogs*	Cleans up server licensing logs.
MailMessageLogs*	Cleans up records of group emails sent from the dashboard.
MDMSyncLogs	Cleans up ZENworks device app logs.
PhoneLog	Cleans up device phone logs.
Recover License Seats	Cleans up devices that have been in a pending delete state for 30 days, after an administrator has issued the <i>Stop Managing Device</i> command.
Rollover Logs	Removes all records in DataUsageLogs, Alerts, and DeviceAppsUsage tables if the SAkey has reached more than 2 billion.
TextMessageLog	Cleans up device text message logs.
Warnings*	Cleans up server and device warning logs.

* Data is system based; all other tasks clean up user data

Adding a Database Task

Administrators can access the *Database Task Scheduler* through the *System* view of the *ZENworks Mobile Management* dashboard. You must have full administrative login credentials.

- 1. Select System > System Administration > Database Task Scheduler.+
- 2. Click the Add Database Task button.
- 3. Select the Task Type.
 - Choose Standard to schedule a cleanup job for one of the database tables listed in the Table Name drop-down list.

dd Database Task	× Add Database Task
Task Type 💿 Standard 🔘 Custom	Task Type 🔘 Standard 💿 Custom
Task Name: 🐐	Task Name: *
Table Name: * Select One	Table Name: Select One
Cleanup Records Older Than: *	Cleanup Records Older Than:
Cleanup Parameter Unit: * 💿 Days 🔾 Hours 🔾 Minutes	Cleanup Parameter Unit: O Days O Hours O Minutes
Naximum # Of Records to Hold: *	Maximum # Of Records to Hold:
Frequency: *	Frequency: *
Frequency Unit: 🍍 💿 Days 🔘 Hours 🔘 Minutes	Frequency Unit: * 💿 Days 🔾 Hours 🔾 Minutes
Enabled: 🗹	Enabled: 🗹
Stored Procedure:	Stored Procedure: *

Choose **Custom** to schedule a stored procedure (or SQL script).

Adding a Standard Table Cleanup Task



- 4. Enter a Task Name. If you are creating a Custom task, skip to Frequency.
- 5. Select the database *Table Name* from the drop-down list.
- Enter the cleanup parameters, which define the age of the records to be deleted from the database table. In the *Cleanup Records Older Than* and *Cleanup Parameter Unit* fields, enter a number and select *Days*, *Hours*, or *Minutes*.

Example: If you enter 7 Days, each time the task runs, it deletes records older than 7 days.

- Enter the *Maximum # of Records to Hold*. This puts a limit on the number of records to store in the database table. If the task is configured to keep 7 days of information, but the records still exceed the maximum, the oldest records are deleted until the maximum is reached. Enter 0-999999999.
- Enter the frequency parameters, which define how often the task runs. In the *Frequency* and *Frequency Unit* fields, enter a number and select *Days*, *Hours*, or *Minutes*.

Example: If you enter 1 Days, the task runs every day.

9. Select the *Enabled* box to activate the task.

10. If you are creating a *Custom* task, enter the name of the *Stored Procedure*. Verify that you have entered the name correctly.

Note: If the Database Task grid shows that a custom task has not run, it is likely that the name of the stored procedure was entered incorrectly. Click the *Run Database Task* button and select the *Last Runtime* field in the grid to test the stored procedure.

11. Click *Finish* to save the task.

Managing the Database Tasks

Database tasks can be added, edited, or removed by using the scheduler. You can also manually initiate a task so that it bypasses the frequency interval and runs immediately.

Access the Database Task Scheduler by selecting **System** > **System Administration** > **Database Task Scheduler**.

The options bar at the top of the view includes the following management options:

- Add Database Task
- Remove Database Task
- Run Database Task
- Save Changes (select after editing a task)

The *Database Task Scheduler* displays a grid of the standard and custom tasks that have been configured. Select a task from the grid to edit its parameters, to remove it, or to run the task immediately.



Troubleshooting Tip: If a database task has failed to run, you can check the *DatabaseTaskSchedulerLogs* database table for errors.

Task Parameters: Best Practices/Recommendations

The following recommendations for database cleanup task parameters assume that systems have been configured according to the hardware requirements for scaling outlined in the *ZENworks Mobile Management* <u>System Performance: Sizing and Tuning</u> guide.

Database Tables that Accumulate Data Quickly

Because of rapid data accumulation, several tables in the database are configured, by default, to retain only the data from the last synchronization cycle of each device. The most recent values continuously replace data stored from the previous synchronization of each device. Historical data is not maintained.

Database tables that retain only the most recent values are:

- DeviceStatistics
- iOSDeviceInformation
- iOSDeviceNetworkInformation
- iOSInstalledApplications
- iOSInstalledCertificates
- iOSInstalledConfigurationProfiles (and tables it references)
- iOSSecurityInfo

If organizations want to maintain historical data instead of just the recent values for these tables, administrators can run a script to remove these constraints and implement the recommended job parameters (a future version of *ZENworks Mobile Management* will include dashboard access to configuration settings). Organizations that elect to maintain historical data for these tables might need to reevaluate and scale their hardware configuration to accommodate the additional data.

Note: Organizations should not keep historical data for these tables when they are using Microsoft SQL Express.

The iOSInstalledConfigurationProfiles Table

iOSInstalledConfigurationProfiles references two other tables:

- iOSProfileSignerCertificates
- iOSInstalledConfigurationProfilePayloads

When information is deleted from *iOSInstalledConfigurationProfiles*, it is also deleted from these two tables. When only the most recent values are stored for *iOSInstalledConfigurationProfiles*, the same is true for these two tables.

The DeviceLocations Table

The *DeviceLocations* table can also accumulate data quickly when organizations elect to track device locations. If historical location data is not a necessity, this table can also be configured to store only data from

the last synchronization cycle of each device. Currently, this is accomplished with a database script (a future version of *ZENworks Mobile Management* will include dashboard access to configuration settings).

The parameters in the table below are the default settings for the database cleanup jobs, which are automatically enabled when *ZENworks Mobile Management* is initially installed.

These parameters are recommended for a system accommodating 1,000 devices. Administrators of larger systems should adjust the task parameters according to the recommendations in the best practices guidelines outlined below this table.

For tables marked with an asterisk, the default behavior is to retain only the data from the last synchronization cycle of each device; although recommended settings are given if you want to keep historical data. (Administrators can run a script to remove these constraints and implement the recommended job parameters. A future version of *ZENworks Mobile Mangement* will include Dashboard access to accomplish this.)

*Tables that, by default, retain only the data from the last synchronization cycle of each device.

Task Name	Cleanup Records Older Than	Frequency	Maximum # of Records to Hold
Database Cleanup Jobs			
AirProxyLogs	30 Days	Daily	1,800,000
Alerts	14 Days	Daily	250,000
APNTracking	60 Days	Daily	10,000,000
DatabaseTaskSchedulerLogs System data is not affected by number of devices	30 Days	Daily	300,000
DataUsageLogs	30 Days	Daily	100,000,000
DeviceLocations	180 Days	Daily	6,000,000
DeviceLogs	365 Days	Daily	50,000
DeviceStatistics* If you keep historical data:	30 Days	Daily	1,000,000
ErrorChainLogs	30 Days	Daily	100,000
iOSDeviceInformation* If you keep historical data:	30 Davs	Dailv	1.000.000
iOSDeviceNetworkInformation* If you keep historical data:	30 Days	Daily	1,000,000
iOSInstalledApplications* If you keep historical data:	30 Days	Daily	60,000,000
iOSInstalledCertificates* If you keep historical data:	180 Days	Daily	12,000,000
iOSInstalledConfigurationProfiles* If you keep historical data:	180 Days	Daily	36,000,000
iOSMDMSyncLogs	30 Days	Daily	10,000,000
iOSSecurityInfo* If you keep historical data:	30 Days	Daily	1,000,000
LicensingLogs System data is not affected by number of devices	365 Days	Daily	500
MailMessageLogs	365 Days	Daily	500,000
MDMSyncLogs	30 Days	Daily	1,000,000
PhoneLog	365 Days	Daily	4,000,000

Recover License Seats	-	Daily	-
Rollover Logs	-	Daily	-
TextMessageLog	365 Days	Daily	20,000,000
Warnings	30 Days	Daily	250,000
Stored Procedures			
Defragment Indexes	-	Weekly	-

Systems with More than 1000 Devices

For systems accommodating more than 1,000 devices, the *Maximum # of Records to Hold* recommendations listed above should be multiplied to arrive at a figure that accommodates multiples of one thousand devices. You can enter values up to 999,999,999.

For example, maximum records for the *DataUsageLogs* and *AirProxyLogs* tables should be configured as follows:

DataUsageLogs	Table	Maximum # of Records to Hold	Approximate Records per Device
1,000 Device System	100,000,000	100,000,000	100,000
5,000 Device System	5 x 100,000,000	500,000,000	100,000
25,000 Device System	25 x 100,000,000	999,999,999 enforced maximum	40,000
100,000 Device System	100 x 100,000,000	999,999,999 enforced maximum	10,000
125,000 Device System	125 x 100,000,000	999,999,999 enforced maximum	8,000

AirProxyLogs T	able	Maximum # of Records to Hold	Approximate Records per Device
1,000 Device System	1,800,000	1,800,000	2,000
5,000 Device System	5 x 1,800,000	9,000,000	2,000
25,000 Device System	25 x 1,800,000	45,000,000	2,000
100,000 Device System	100 x 1,800,000	180,000,000	2,000
125,000 Device System	125 x 1,800,000	225,000,000	2,000

Click the Save Changes button in the options bar after you edit a task.

Moving the ZENworks Mobile Management Database

Back Up Before you Begin

- Back up the ZENworks Mobile Management database on the original server.
- If you will also be moving the ZENworks Mobile Management Web/Http Component, back up the MDM.ini file on the Web/Http server. This file is found under the ZENworks directory. Default directory: C:\Program Files\Novell\ZENworks\mobile.

Setting up the New Database Server

- 1. Fully install the *ZENworks Mobile Management* Server software to the new server. In order to perform updates on the new server, both the *ZENworks Mobile Management* Web/Http component and the SQL database component must be installed.
- 2. Using the *ZENworks Mobile Management Update Manager*, patch the new system to the same version as the original system. Both systems must be patched to the same version to successfully complete the database move.
- 3. If you are moving only the SQL component and leaving the Web/Http component installed on the original machine, the Web component should be removed from the new server when the Update Manager has patched the system.

The Web/Http component, wherever it is housed, points to the new SQL component location and facilitates any future updates.

Moving the Database

- 1. Stop IIS on the server where the Web/Http Component resides.
- 2. From the SQL Server Management Studio, detach the *ZENworks Mobile Management* database from the new server:
 - a. Right-click the *MDM* database and select *Tasks* > *Detach*.
 - b. Select **OK** at the next screen to complete the Detach.

Explorer		- 4 ×			🧾 Detach Database					
:t • 🛃 🛃	= 🝸 🖬 🍒				Select a page	🔄 式 Script 👻 🎼 H	lelp			
TL2 (SQL Ser	ver 10.0.1600 - sa) s				and a control of	Databases to de				
🗄 🚞 Syste	m Databases					Database Name	Drop Connec	Update Statistics	Status	Message
E Datat	base Snapshots					MDM			Rea	
E Re	<u>N</u> ew Database									
🗄 📙 Re	New Query									
Server	Script Database as	•								
Replic	<u>I</u> asks	•	Detach							
SQL S	Policies	۰.	Take Offline							
	Facets		Bring Online							
	Start PowerShell		Shrink	F						
	Regorts	•	Back Up							
	Rename		Restore	×						
	Delete		Mirror		Connection	1				
	Refresh		Launch Database Mirroring Monitor		Server:					
	Properties		Ship Transaction Logs		TL2					
			Generate Scripts		Sa Sa					
			Publish using Web Service		View connection properties					
			Import Data							
			Export Data		Progress					
			⊆opy Database		neady					1
			Manage Database Encryption			121				

- 3. Detach the ZENworks Mobile Management database from the original server:
 - a. Right-click the *MDM* database and select *Tasks* > *Detach*.
 - b. Select **OK** at the next screen to complete the Detach.

KMicrosoft SQL Server Management Studio

bject Explorer		- 4 ×		🧊 Detach Database						_0,
	er 10.0.1600 - ca)			Select a page	🔄 🖾 Script 👻 🚺 Help	p				
 Database System 	s m Databases			ueleta	Databases to detac	h:				
E Datab	ase Snapshots				Database Name	Drop	Updat	Status	Message	
	<u>N</u> ew Database New <u>Q</u> uery Script Database as	•			MDM			Not	53 Active connection(s)	
E Carver	<u>I</u> asks	•	Detach							
⊞ 🎴 Manag ⊞ 📸 SQL Se	Policies Facets	•	Iake Offline Bring Online							
	Start PowerShell		Shrink •							
	Reports	•	Back Up							
	Rena <u>m</u> e <u>D</u> elete		<u>Restore</u> <u>Mirror</u>							
	Refresh Properties		Launch Database Mirroring Mgnitor Ship Transaction Logs	Connection Server: TL1						
L			Generate Scripts Pyblish using Web Service Import Data Export Data	Connection: sa	<u>15</u>					
			⊆opy Database	Ready						
			Manage Database Encryption	3458						

4. Move the .mdf and .ldf files from the original server to the new server:

Default directory: C:\Program Files\Microsoft SQL Server\MSSQL10.MSSQLSERVER\MSSQL\DATA

G:\Program Files\Microsoft SQL Server\M File <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	5QL10.M	ISSQLSER¥ER\MSSQ	L\DATA			: loi_ //
🔾 Back 👻 🕤 👻 🏂 🔎 Search 🄀 Folders	8	× 19 📰 -				
Address 🛅 C:\Program Files\Microsoft SQL Server	MSSQL10.	MSSQLSERVER\MSSQL	\DATA			💌 🄁 Go
Folders	×	Name 🔺		Size	Туре	Date Modified
		master.mdf mastog.ldf MDM.mdf Modellog.ldf MODel.og.LDF modellog.ldf MSDEData.mdf MSDEData.mdf MSDELog.ldf ReportServer.mdf ReportServerTem tempdb.mdf templog.ldf	Type: SQL S Date Modifie Size: 21.0 M : .LDF pDB.mdf pDB_log.LDF	4,096 KB 1,024 KB 21,504 KB 21,504 KB 11,136 KB erver Database Prin d: 3/27/2012 1:35 8 512 KB 3,328 KB 6,272 KB 2,304 KB 768 KB 8,192 KB 512 KB	SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa staba SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa SQL Server Databa	3/27/2012 1: 3/27/2012 1:
C Log C repidata C Upgrade						

- 5. Attach the ZENworks Mobile Management database to the new server.
 - a. Right-click *Database* and select *Attach*.



b. Select *Add* to add the database to the server.

	🖇 Script 👻 📗	Help					
General							
	Databases to	attach:					
	MDF File	e Location	Database	Attach As	Owner	Status	Message
3	1						
					<u>A</u> dd	E	Remove
	Database det	ails:					
		Jame File 1	voe Current	File Path	1	lessage	
	Original File N						
	Original File N				10		
nnection	Original File N						
nnection erver: 2	Original File N				5.20		
nnection erver: L2 connection	Original File N						
nnection erver: L2 onnection:	Original File N		,				
nnection erver: L2 onnection:	Original File N		,				
nnection erver: 2 onnection 2 View connection properties	Original File N						
nnection erver: L2 onnection: J2 View connection properties ogress	Original File N					1 .	
nnection erver: L2 onnection: 3 View connection propetiles ogress Rearly	Original File N			Add	<u>C</u> atalog	F	Remove
nnection erver: L2 ornection: <u>9</u> <u>View connection properties</u> paress Ready	Original File N			Add	<u>C</u> atalog	F	Remove
nnection erver: L2 onnection: # View connection properties pgress Ready	Original File N			Add	<u>C</u> atalog	F	Remove

c. Locate the MDM.mdf file copied from the original server.

Default directory: C:\Program Files\Microsoft SQL Server\MSSQL10.MSSQLSERVER\MSSQL\DATA

d. Select **OK** to complete the Attach.

	Locate Database Files - TL2		Attach Databases		
General	Select the file:		Select a page	Script - 🚯 Help	
Connection	Select the the: Microsoft SQL Server Image: SQL Server <	Status Message Benove	Connection	Database to altach: MDF File Location Database Attach As Owner Status Met C\Program Files\Mt MDM MDM sa Met 'MDM'' database degalis:	sage e
Server: TL2	er instal		Server: TL2	MDM_log.LDF Log C. Vriogian riles wilcios	
Connection: sa	Billion JUBS Billion Log Billion repidata		Connection: sa		
View connection prop	B G Upgrade Microsoft SQL Server Compact Edition		View connection properties		
Progress	Selected path: C:\Program Files\Microsoft SQL Server\MSSQL	Bemove	Progress	Add Catalog Removi	
O Ready	Files of type: Database Files(".mdf) File game: MDM.mdf		C Ready		
		Cancel		OKCan	cel

- 6. If you are also moving the Web component, copy the MDM.ini file from the original system to the new system.
- 7. The MDM.ini file must be updated to point to the new SQL Server regardless of whether the Web component is remaining on the original server or being moved to a new server. Contact Technical Support for assistance in updating this file.

rganize 🔻 🗐 Open 💌 Sh	are with 🔻 Print New folder				
🔆 Favorites	Name *	Date modified	Туре	Size	
🧮 Desktop	🌡 backups	6/12/2012 11:01 AM	File folder		
📕 Downloads	Logs	6/15/2012 12:04 AM	File folder		
🔛 Recent Places	🔑 php	5/23/2012 8:20 AM	File folder		
😋 i kenning	📕 template	5/23/2012 8:20 AM	File folder		
Documents	🐌 update logs	6/12/2012 11:01 AM	File folder		
🚽 🚽 Music	🎉 web	5/23/2012 8:20 AM	File folder		
E Pictures	ZendFramework	5/23/2012 8:20 AM	File folder		
🗄 🔣 Videos	Tza 7za	4/26/2012 3:52 PM	Application		574 k
	📄 DropDatabase	12/15/2011 8:25 AM	Microsoft SQL Serv		1 k
Computer	📄 DropUser	5/23/2012 8:15 AM	Microsoft SQL Serv		1 k
I and Disk (C:)	exclude	4/26/2012 3:54 PM	Text Document		1 k
	lastbackupinfo	6/12/2012 11:01 AM	File		1 k
🙀 Network	MDM	5/23/2012 8:20 AM	Configuration settings	ie.	31
	() mdm_s	5/22/2012 1:56 PM	Icon	i	289
	() mdm_w	5/22/2012 1:56 PM	Icon	2	289
	🚳 ntc_mdm_AdminAuthenticator.dll	5/18/2012 3:49 PM	Application extension	10	100
	🚳 ntc_mdm_AdminRoles.dll	5/18/2012 3:50 PM	Application extension		85 k
	🚳 ntc_mdm_AirProxy.dll	5/18/2012 3:47 PM	Application extension	ç	521 k
	🚳 ntc_mdm_AirSyncParser.dll	5/18/2012 3:43 PM	Application extension		181 k
	🚳 ntc_mdm_APN.dll	5/18/2012 3:50 PM	Application extension		78 k
	4		•••••••••		

Completing and Verifying the Move

- 1. Start IIS on the Web server.
- 2. Perform an ODBC test from the Web server to ensure a successful connection to the database server.
- 3. Verify the new setup by logging in to the *ZENworks Mobile Management* dashboard and ensuring that devices are actively syncing.

Additional Steps

If you have completed all of the steps in this guide and are experiencing issues, you might need to remove and re-create the *ZENworks Mobile Management* user within SQL.

1. Delete the ZENworks Mobile Management user.



2. Re-create the ZENworks Mobile Management user.

	📑 Login - New			
	Select a page	🔄 Script 🔻 📑 Help		
	Server Roles	Login name:	zenuser	Search
	Status	Windows authentication		
		SQL Server authentication		
		Password:	•••••	
	1	Confirm password:	•••••	
		Specify old password		
		Old password:		
		Enforce password policy	у	
Microsoft SQL Server Management Studio		Enforce password expire	ation	
File Edit View Tools Window Community Help		User must change pass	word at next login	
: 🛄 New Query 👔 📑 📴 🖃 🥌 🜉 💂		Mapped to certificate		
		Mapped to asymmetric key		-
□ P 192168 2107 (SOL Server 10.0.4064 - ca)	Connection	Map to Credential		▼ Add
Databases	Server:	Mapped Credentials	Credential Provider	
🖃 🚞 Security	192.168.2.107			
R # New Login	Connection:			
🚑 # Filter 🕨 n##	View connection properties			
Start PowerShell				
Reports	Progress			Remove
	Ready	Default database:	MDM	•
A V Retresh ator	Weak and a second secon	Default language:	<default></default>	
🛪 Zenuser				
😠 🚞 Credentials				OK Cancel
📼 🧰 Cryptographic Providers	Į			
Login Properties - heather				
Select a page	🖾 Script 👻 🚺 Help			
P Server Roles	I factor example of the Main faction			
User Mapping	Man Database	Ulser	Default Schema	
Status	master		D'oldar Cononia	
5.5/2/00/20/22	MDM	heather	dbo	
	model			
	ReportServer			
	tempdb			
	And Contraction			

				. Contraction of the second se
relect a page	Script ·	🕶 [🚹 Help		
Meneral Server Roles	Users ma	apped to this login:		
Securables	Map	Database	User	Default Schema
🚰 Status		master	- (
		MDM	heather	dbo
		model		
		msdb		
		ReportServer		
		ReportServerTempDB		
		tempdb		
	🔽 Gues	t account enabled for: maste	r	8
Connection	Database	t account enabled for: maste e <mark>role membership for: master</mark> ccessadmin	T	X
Connection Server: TL2 Connection: sa View connection propetties Progress Ready	Database db_a db_d db_d db_d db_d db_d db_d db_d	t account enabled for: maste ccessadmin ackupoperator atareader atawriter diadmin enydataverader enydataverader enydataverter wmer ecurityadmin c ecurityadmin c	đ	X

- a. Select SQL Server Authentication and set the password.
- b. Deselect the *Enforce password policy* option so it does not change.

- c. Set the *Default Database* to MDM.
- d. Under *User Mapping*, verify that MDM is selected.

NOTE: If you do not recall the credentials you used previously, you can create a new user. Creating a new user requires you to update the username and password within the MDM.ini file. Contact Technical Support for assistance in updating that file.